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THE CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK, )
)

)

Defendant,
COMPLAINT

Plaintiffs, by their attorneys, make their Complaint against defendant as follows

I. INTRODUCTION

1. Thisisa civil rights class action brought pursuant to 42 U.S.C. §§ 1983
and 1988 and 28 U.S.C. §§ 2201 and 2202 seeking declaratory and injunctive relief for
violations of the Fourth Amendment to the United States Constitution, the Equal
Protection Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution, Title
VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., and the administrative
regulations of the Unitéd States Department of Justice effectuating Title VI, 28 C.F.R. §

42.101 et seq.
I1. JURISDICTION AND VENUE

2. This Court has jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331 and 1343(a)

Venue lies in this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b)(2) because all of



the events giving rise to the claims in this Complaint occurred within the Northern
District of Illinois.
III. PARTIES

4. Plaintiff Michael Ledford, Jr. is a resident of the City of Highland Park,
Illinois. He is and appears to be African-American.

5. Plaintiff Karen Lynn Ledford is a resident of the City of Highland Park,
[llinois. She is and appears to be African-American,

6. Defendant the City of Highland Park is a duly constituted municipal
corporation under the laws of the State of Illinois. The City operates the Highland Park
Police Department (HPPD”). |

IV. CLASS ALLEGATIONS

7. Pursuant to Rule 23(b)(2) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and for
purposes of declaratory and injunctive relief, plaintiffs seek to represent a class of all
persons who in the past have been, or who in the future are subjected to any policy,
practice or custom which has the result of or requires Highland Park Police Department
officers to target persons for surveillance, stops, detentions, interrogations, requests for
consent to search, and searches on the basis of race or ethnicity.

8. All of the prerequisites to a class action as stated in Rule 23(a) are satisfied
by this class:

()  Numerous individuals have been or will be subjected to the
policies, practices, and customs alleged herein. Therefore, the class is so numerous that

joinder of all members is impracticable.



(b)  There are questions of law and fact common to the plaintiff class.
The common questions include whether the policies, practices, and customs described
herein violate the Fourth Amendment, the Equal Protection Clausc, Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, and the Department of Justice regulations promulgated pursuant to
Title VL

{c) The claims of plaintiffs are typical of the claims of the class: they
were targeted for surveillance, stopped, detained, inferrogated, and/or searched pursuant
to the policies, practices, and customs challenged here, as was each member of the class.

(d) Plaintiffs will fairly and adequately represent the interests of the
class: they have no interest antagonistic to the class; they seek declaratory and injunctive
relief oﬁ behalf of the entire class and such relief will benefit all members of the class;
and they are represented by counsel who are competent and experienced in civil rights
and class action litigation.

9. The class satisfies Rule 23(b)(2) becauée defendant has engaged in a

course of conduct common to all members of the class, and final declaratory and
injunctive relief in favor of the plaintiff class is therefore appropriate.

V. FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

10. Defendant maintains policies, practices, and customs which have the result
of or require HPPD officers to target persons for surveillance, stops, detentions,
interrogations, requests for consent to search, and searches on the basis of race.

11.  Onrepeated occasions during 1998 and 1997, HPPD officers stopped,
detained, interrogated, and/or searched Michael Ledford, Jr. pﬁrsuant to the policies,

practices and customs set forth above.



12. On April 11, 2000, .an HPPD officer targeted Karen Lynn Ledford for
surveillance pursuaﬁt to the policies, practices and customs set forth above. On at least
one prior occasion, HIPPD officers stopped, detained, and interrogated Karen Lynn
Ledford pursuant to the policies, practices and customs set forth above.

13, During the time relevant to each of the incidents above, plaintiffs did not
violate any local, state or federal law, and there was no cause to believe they had done so.

VI. CLAIMS FOR RELIEF

14 Defeﬁdant’s actions discussed above violate plaintiffs’ rights under the
Fourth Amendment to the United States Constitution.
15. Defendant’s actions discussed above violate plaintiffs’ rights under the
Equal Protection Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution.
16.  Defendant’s actions discussed above violate 42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.
17.  Defendant’s actions discussed above violate 28 C.F.R. § 42.101 et seq.

VII. PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, plaintiffs respectfully request that this Court:

A. Enter a declaratory judgment that defendant’s policies, practices, and
customs described above violate the Fourth Amendment, the Equal Protection Clause,
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and the Department of Justice regulations
effectuating Title V1.

B. Enter a permanent inj unction:

(a) prohibiting all HPPD officers from considering in any fashion and
to any degree the race or ethnicity of civilians in deciding to surveil, stop, detain,

interrogate, request consent to search, or search; except that in circumstances where
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‘HPPD ofﬁceré are sceking to detain, apprehend, or otherwise be on the lookout for a
specific individuél sought in connection with a specific crime who has been ideﬁtiﬁed or
described in part by race or ethnicity, HPPD officers may rely in part on race or ethnicity
in determining whether reasonable suspicion exists that a given individual is the person
being sought;

(b) requiring defendants to collect and maintain comprehensive
records of all contacts with persons subjected .to surveillance, stops, detentions,
interrogations, requests for consent to éearch, and searches in Highland Park, including
those contacts that do not result in the issuance of citations, and to include in these
records the race and ethnicity of all individuals involved;

(©) ordering defendants to submit a plan to the Court for its approval
providing for effective prevenfive mechanisms to ensure that racially discriminatory
surveillance, stops, detentions, interrogations, requests for consent to search, and searches
do not continue in the future.

C. Award plaintiffs’ costs, expenses and reasonable attorneys’ fees pursﬁant
to 42 U.S.C. § 1988.
D. Award such other ahd further relief as this Court deems necessary and

proper.



DATED: July 12,2000

HARVEY GROSSMAN

ADAM SCHWARTZ

~ Roger Baldwin Foundation
of ACLU, Inc.

180 North Michigan Avenue

Suite 2300

Chicago, Illinois 60601

(312) 201-9740

Respectfully submitte

One of pl ntiffs’ a{torneys

PAUL E. GREENWALT III
MATTHEW J. FISCHER
CAROLYN MOREHOUSE
Schiff Hardin & Waite

6600 Sears Tower

Chicago, Illinois 60606
(312) 258-5500



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

- I, Adam Schwartz, an attorney, Ihe're'.by ceniﬂf that on the 12th day of July, 2000, I caused

to be served to the party listed below a true and correct copy of the foregoing COMPLAINT, via

| messenger delivery, before the hour of 5:00 pm.

TO: Steven M. Elrod
-~ Holland & Knight
. 35 W. Monroe, Suite 800
Chicago, IL. 60603

i
By: A\JL“ L {\U(Qi !’x

/ One'of the Plaint¥ff§” Attorneys
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NOTICE OF FILING

’

TO: Steven M. Elrod
Holland & Knight
55 W. Monroe, Suite 800
Chicago, IL 60603 '
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that on the 12th day of July, 2000, we filed with the Clerk of

the United States District Court for the Northern District of Illinois, Eastern Division, a

COMPLAINT, a copy of which is attached hereto and served upon you.

‘By: /C\C)u'“ QCLMML'

{ Ot of the Plairfiffs’ Attdreys

HARVEY GROSSMAN PAUL E. GREENWALT III

ADAM SCHWARTZ MATTHEW J. FISCHER

Roger Baldwin Foundation CAROLYN MOREHOUSE
of ACLU, Inc. Schiff Hardin & Waite

180 North Michigan Avenue 6600 Sears Tower

Suite 2300 Chicago, Illinois 60606

Chicago, Illinois 60601 (312) 258-5500

(312) 201-9740
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